




MERCEDES CITY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 16, 2022 – 6:30 P.M. 
MERCEDES CITY HALL – COMMISSION CHAMBERS 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Oscar D. Montoya Sr.    Mayor 

    Joe Martinez    Mayor Pro-Tem 

    Jacob Howell    Commissioner 

    Armando Garcia   Commissioner 

    Ruben Saldana    Commissioner (webex) 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Alberto Perez    City Manager 

Martie Garcia Vela   City Attorney 

Joselynn Castillo   City Secretary 

Nereida Perez    Finance Director 

Joaquin Hernandez   Public Works Director 

Ervin Vilchis    IT Liason 

Pedro Estrada    Police Chief 

Javier Ramirez    Asst. City Manager 

Martin Johnson    Asst. Rec. Director 

Kristine Longoria    Human Resources 

Javier Campos    Fire Chief 

 

OTHERS PRESENT: Axel Vallejo, Brianna Casares, Francisco Sanchez,  

 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

Mayor Montoya welcomed everyone and called the meeting to order at 6:30 P.M.  

2. ESTABLISH QUORUM 

Three members of the Commission were present which constitutes a quorum. Commissioner Saldana was 

present through the webex application. Mayor Pro-Tem Martinez arrived after the pledge of allegiance.  

3. INVOCATION 

Mayor Montoya said the invocation.  

4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Commissioner Garcia led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

5. OPEN FORUM- 

No one signed up for Open Forum. Mayor Montoya sent condolences to the families of Coach Mike 

Gonzalez and Officer John J. Vega.  

6. PRESENTATIONS: 

a. Recognition of the Mercedes Enterprise. 

Mayor Pro-Tem Martinez motioned to postpone to the next meeting. Commissioner Garcia 

seconded. Upon a called vote, the motion passed unanimously.  

7. CONSENT AGENDA:  
a. Approval of Minutes for Meeting(s) held August 2, 2022   

Mayor Pro-Tem Martinez motion to approve the item under consent agenda. Commissioner Garcia 

seconded. Upon a called vote, the motion passed unanimously.  

8. ORDINANCE/RESOLUTIONS: Present, Discuss, Consider, and Possibly Take Action Regarding:  

a. First reading of Ordinance No. 2022-16 to Rezone Mercedes Original Townsite Lot 24 Blk 

69 from Class “B” Two Family to Class “C-1” Apartment District; Applicant: Cynthia P. 

Gamez (ACM) 

b. First Reading of Ordinance No. 2022-17 Prohibiting the Processing, Storage, Application, 

Disposal and Treatment of Municipal Solid Waste and Wastewater. (ACM) 

Mayor Pro-Tem Martinez motioned to approve the first reading of ordinances 2022-16 and 

2022-17. Commissioner Garcia seconded. Upon a called vote, the motion passed unanimously.  

9. MANAGEMENT ITEM(S): Present, Discuss, Consider, and Possibly Take Action Regarding:  

1



a. Budget Amendment request to Transfer Three (3) Planning Department Positions to the 

Public Works Department. (Public Works) 

Mayor Pro-Tem Martinez motioned to approve the transfer. Commissioner Garcia seconded. 

Mr. Hernandez informed the Commission of the transfer. The three positions are budgeted and 

overseen by public works. He stated one position is going to streets department and the other 

two are going to building maintenance. Upon a called vote, the motion passed unanimously.  

b. Vote on Proposed Tax Rate for 2022 

Ms. Perez addressed the Commission regarding the proposed tax rate. The City is proposing to 

keep the tax rate the same. Ms. Perez stated the M&O and debt rate will be shifting rates. 

Commissioner Howell made a motion to approve. Mayor Pro-Tem Martinez seconded. The 

general fund and M&O fund will fund the projects for the departments. The I&S fund is used 

to pay the $2.1 Million debt from property tax supported debt. At a question, Mr. Perez stated 

the city is on track with the budget and will be eliminating some of the debt this year. 

Commissioner Saldana asked for the I&N rate. Ms. Perez stated the rate fluctuates every year 

but does not expect it to decrease from the 30% rate. Mayor Montoya stated that the staff 

worked hard to bring the budget down to keep the tax rate at the same rate. Commissioner 

Saldana stated that in order to keep the city in good shape, the city must continue borrowing 

but are used for long term investments. Commissioner Saldana stated that the city is at a lower 

tax rate from 15 years ago. Upon a called vote, the motion passed unanimously. Mr. Perez stated 

it’s a team effort and will soon see the benefits in growth.  

c. Directing City Manager to update the City, School and Neighborhood maintenance 

initiative. (CM) 

Mr. Perez had provided a concept before to update the maintenance of streets, sidewalks and 

walkways for the kids going back to school. Commissioner Howell wants to make sure that the 

areas are cleaned and patrol is more active for the school year. Commissioner Saldana would 

like the sidewalks to be repainted. Mayor Pro-Tem Martinez motioned to approve. 

Commissioner Howell seconded. Upon a called vote, the motion passed unanimously.  

10. BIDS/CONTRACTS: Present, Discuss, Consider, and Possibly Take Action Regarding:  
a. Approval of Interlocal Agreement between Mercedes Independent School District and the 

Mercedes Police Department. (PD) 

Mayor Pro-Tem Martinez made a motion to approve. Commissioner Howell seconded. Commissioner 

Howell explained that partnership will update from having two school resource officers to five 

resource officers. Commissioner Howell commended the Police Department for working with the 

School district on the active shooter training. Upon a called vote, the motion passed unanimously.  

b. Interlocal Agreement between the City of Mercedes and the City of Weslaco for Animal Care 

Services. 

Mr. Perez informed the Commission that this is a renewal and has two changes on the fees for 

impoundment and the deceased animal fee has increased. Mayor Pro-Tem Martinez motioned to 

approve. Commissioner Garcia seconded. Commissioner Howell asked for other option and the cost 

for the city to have the services. Mr. Perez stated the requirements to have the shelter at the city and is 

currently not in the books for Mercedes. Mayor Montoya stated to look at the option of providing spay 

and neuter for a fee in order to return the animals to the owners. The Commission stated that education 

is key. Upon a called vote, the motion passed 4 to 1. Commissioner Howell voted against.  

c. Approval of Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Addendum between the Children’s 

Advocacy Center of Hidalgo and Starr Counties and the Mercedes Police Department. (PD) 

Police Chief Estrada stated the changes of the MOU are just the signature. Mayor Pro-Tem Martinez 

motion to approve. Commissioner Howell seconded. Upon a called vote, the motion passed 

unanimously.  

d. Entering into Contract for Engineering Services (CM) 

Mr. Perez stated that the City is growing and there is a higher need to keep up with the demands of the 

customers. Mr. Ramirez stated the city went out for engineering services. He stated 19 firms submitted 

and provided the commission with a list of the engineer’s staff are recommending. Mr. Fred Resendez 

2



from Freese and Nichols provided a brief description of their company. Mr. Richard Correa from 

Garver specialty water and wastewater and municipal service. Casa Engineering Mr. Juan Vigilio 

Garcia Civil and Surveying Associates, his background is water and wastewater. Mr. Guzman and 

Munoz provided a short history of his work, B2Z, David Rivera specializes in roadway, drainage, 

construction management, and geotechnical services. Mayor Pro-Tem Martinez motioned to move 

forward with the recommended engineering on rotation. Commissioner Howell seconded. 

Commissioner Howell stated the city wants to get things done. Mayor Montoya stated some of the 

biggest complaints was that it took forever to do business here. He added that the engineers should be 

putting the pressure to keep moving projects forward. Upon a called vote, the motion passed 

unanimously.  

11. Departmental Monthly Reports: 

Police Dpt., Public Works, Library, Planning, Finance/Municipal Court, City Secretary/HR/PIO, 

Fire 

The Department reports were included for the Commission to review. No action required.  

Mayor Montoya called the meeting into executive session at 7:17 P.M. 

12. Executive Session: Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, Section 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney), 

Section 551.072 (Deliberation regarding Real Property), Section 551.074 (Personnel Matters) and Section 551.087 

(Economic Development) 
a. Discussion regarding Project Lopez – Section 551.087 

b. Discussion regarding Projects Update from DCM– Section 551.087 

c. Consultation with Attorney regarding legal requirements for school safety and police department 

requirements – 551.071 

d. Discussion regarding Project Updates from the City – Section 551.087 

e. Consultation with Attorney regarding ETJ legal requirements – Section 551.071 

Mayor Montoya called the meeting back to order at 9:22 P.M.  

13. Open Session: Discuss, Consider, and Possibly Take Action Regarding 

a. Item A from Executive Session 

Mayor Pro-Tem Martinez motioned to proceed as discussed in executive session. Commissioner 

Garcia seconded. Upon a called vote, the motion passed unanimously. Mayor Pro-Tem Martinez 

rescinded his previous motion and  motioned to approve the DCM loan in the amount of $85,260 

with a 3% interest rate advertised for 15 years. Commissioner Garcia seconded. Upon a called 

vote, the motion passed unanimously.  

b. Item B from Executive Session 

No action was taken on this item. 

c. Item C from Executive Session 

Commissioner Howell made a motion to approve. Mayor Pro-Tem Martinez seconded. Upon a 

called vote, the motion passed unanimously.  

d. Item D from Executive Session 

No action was taken on this item.  

e. Item E from Executive Session 

Mayor Pro-Tem Martinez motioned to proceed as discussed in executive session. Commissioner 

Garcia seconded. Upon a called vote, the motion passed unanimously. 

14. Adjournment 

Mayor Montoya adjourned the meeting at 9:25 P.M.  
 

3



MERCEDES CITY COMMISSION 

SPECIAL MEETING 

AUGUST 17, 2022 – 6:00 P.M. 

MERCEDES CITY HALL – COMMISSION CHAMBERS 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  Oscar D. Montoya Sr.   Mayor 

Joe Martinez    Mayor Pro-Tem 

Armando Garcia   Commissioner 

Ruben Saldana    Commissioner (webex) 

 

MEMBERS ABSENT:  Jacob Howell    Commissioner  

 

STAFF PRESENT:   Alberto Perez    City Manager 

    Martie Garcia Vela   City Attorney (webex) 

Joselynn Castillo   City Secretary 

Javier Ramirez    Asst. City Manager 

Ervin Vilchis    IT Liaison 

Axel Vallejo    Executive Admin 

Brianna Casares    Public Information Officer  

 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

Mayor Montoya called the 6:00 meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

2. ESTABLISH QUORUM 

Four members of Commission were present which constitutes a quorum. Commissioner Saldana 

was present via webex. Commissioner Howell absent.  

3. INVOCATION 

Mayor Pro-Tem Martinez said the invocation 

4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Mayor Montoya led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

5. OPEN FORUM 

No citizen signed up for open forum.  

6. ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS: Present, Discuss, Consider, and Possibly Take Action Regarding: 

a. Public Hearing and First reading of Ordinance 2022-18 amending the City of Mercedes 

Subdivision Ordinance. 

Mr. Ramirez stated the ordinance is to extend the subdivision rules and plat rules into the 

city’s ETJ to help control the development. There is a change in the street standards to 

eliminate dead ends and cul-de-sacs to make it easier for emergency services and include 

looping water lines. These changes will help prepare the adjacent properties for connection. 

Mayor Montoya opened the public hearing at 6:33 P.M. There were no comments from the 

public. Mayor Montoya closed the public hearing at 6:38 P.M. Mayor Pro-Tem Martinez 

motioned to approve. Commissioner Garcia seconded. Upon a called vote, the motion passed 

unanimously. 

7. ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Pro-Tem Martinez motioned to adjourned. Commissioner Garcia seconded. Upon a called 

vote, the motion passed unanimously. The meeting adjourned at 6:39 P.M. 

 

4



MERCEDES CITY COMMISSION 

WORKSHOP MEETING 

AUGUST 18, 2022 – 6:30 P.M 

MERCEDES CITY HALL – COMMISSION CHAMBERS 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  Oscar D. Montoya Sr.   Mayor 

Joe Martinez    Mayor Pro-Tem 

    Ruben Saldana    Commissioner 

    Armando Garcia   Commissioner 

 

MEMBERS ABSENT:  Jacob Howell    Commissioner 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Alberto Perez    City Manager 

    Joselynn Castillo   City Secretary 

    Javier Ramirez    Asst. City Manager 

    Nereida Perez    Finance Director 

    Joaquin Hernandez   Public Works Director 

    Javier Campos    Fire Chief 

    Kristine Longoria   Human Resources 

    Marisol Vidales    Library Director 

    Ervin Vilchis    IT Director 

    Martin Johnson    Asst. Rec. Director 

 

OTHERS PRESENT:  Axel Vallejo, Meredith Hernandez, Isidro Alvarado, Erika Noriega, Ricardo 

Castillo, Adrian Sauceda, Juan Vega Jr., Nicholas Vallejo, David Mena, Rodolfo Zuniga, Samuel Ochoa, 

Albert Agueros, Jose Celedon, Antonio Gonzalez, Guillermo Ramos, Ysidro Lopez, Jesus Tamez, Aaron 

Villarreal, Francisco Sanchez, Jose Hernandez    

 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

Mayor Montoya welcomed everyone and called the meeting to order at 6:30 P.M.  

2. ESTABLISH QUORUM 

Four members of the Commission were present which constitutes a quorum. Mayor Pro-Tem 

Martinez arrived at 6:44 P.M. Commissioner Howell was absent. 

3. INVOCATION 

Mayor Montoya said the invocation. 

4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Juan Vega Jr. led in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

Mayor Montoya took some time to thank the Public Works Department for their hard work. 

5. OPEN FORUM 

- Mr. Ricardo Castillo stated that promises were made for wages. Equipment has been 

purchased but the raise has not happened. Mr. Castillo stated that he has been employed with 

the City of Mercedes for 17 years and sonic employees are making more than him. Mr. 

Castillo asked for the Commission to make the employees proud.  

- Mr. Adrian Sauceda, utilities supervisor, stated that there is an employee that’s been here for 

40 years that is earning less than $11.00 per hour. He added that cost of living has gone up 

and the employees travel from other cities to work in Mercedes. Mr. Sauceda asked the 

5



Commission for increases for laborers and for standby. Mr. Sauceda stated that the public 

works staff deserve a raise.  

- Mr. Joshua Gallegos, the past 14 years the public works department has only been given 

small raises. He stated the Public Works department work long hours, and help at all the 

events. He added that prices and cost of living have increased. He stated that their take home 

is about $500 every two weeks. The conditions are dangerous for the laborers and they 

deserve a raise.  

6. PRESENTATION AND DISCUSSION REGARDING PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FY 

2022-2023. 

Mr. Perez stated that the current budget is a work in progress but have balanced the budget. Five 

a/c units are currently out that were not foreseen for this year. Ms. Perez stated that 22% of 

revenue is from sales tax. The city is relying on new development as property tax is not 

increasing. The City is working to build up the cash reserves. The budget started with a $1.8 Mil 

shortfall. Ms. Perez stated that 13 departments have an increase, the requested amount was at $12 

Million and increased to $14.1Million. Sales tax is budgeted at a 3% increase which is 

conservative. Property tax will not go into effect until the next year. Commissioner Saldana stated 

its good to plan conservatively and receive more. Mr. Perez stated that the fund policy and 

investment policy was passed and there is currently $3.9 mil in reserves. The reserves are 

required to have a minimum of 90 operational days.  

Mayor Montoya stated that raises are permanent and the city finally has a plan. There is a 

proposed increase. Ms. Perez stated there was an increase on license and permits fees and the city 

used to collect $200K to 500K and are now up to $1.8 mil. General fund was subsidizing the 

utility fund and this year the utility fund will be paying back to the general fund approximately 

$300K. Mayor Montoya stated that the changes are to level the employees. The budget for street 

repair was $150k last fiscal year and requested the same amount for the next fiscal year. Mayor 

Pro-Tem Martinez asked if streets are also allocated for sidewalks. Mr. Hernandez stated that 

sidewalks is not budgeted and there’s no personnel to work on the sidewalks. Mr. Hernandez 

stated that only one person can do concrete work. The Commission stated to look into including a 

plan for sidewalk repairs.  

Mayor Pro-Tem Martinez motioned to go into executive. Commissioner Garcia seconded. Upon a 

called vote, the motion passed unanimously. The Commission went into executive session at 7:06 

p.m.  

Mayor Montoya called the meeting back to order at 8:05 p.m.  

The Commission would like to add two employees to streets, one executive admin, and three 

School resource officers and would like to bring back at the next meeting a line items for 

sidewalks.   

7. ADJOURNMENT.  

Mayor Pro-Tem Martinez motioned to adjourn. Commissioner Garcia seconded. Upon a called 

vote, the motion passed unanimously. The meeting was adjourned at 8:10 p.m. 

6



16

6th 
September

7



8



1  

ORDINANCE NO.  

2022-17   

 

AN ORDINANCE PROHIBITING THE PROCESSING, STORAGE, 

APPLICATION, DISPOSAL, AND TREATMENT OF MUNICIPAL 

SOLID WASTE AND WASTEWATER 
 

 
Sec. 1. Purpose. 

 

The purpose of this Ordinance is to protect, preserve and promote public health, safety and welfare 

and the environment by prohibiting within the City of Mercedes the processing, storage, application, 

disposal, and treatment of municipal solid waste and wastewater. 

 

Sec. 2. Definitions. 

 

For the purposes of this Ordinance, the following words, terms and phrases shall have the meanings 

respectively ascribed to them by this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different 

meaning: 

 

a) “Application” shall mean the physical act of placing or spreading natural gas waste or oil waste on 

any road or real property located within the Town of Glastonbury. 
 

b) “Disposal” shall mean the discharge, deposit, injection, dumping, spilling, leaking or placing of 

industrial, liquid or hazardous waste into or on land, water or the City’s Utility System. 

 

c) “Liquid Waste” 
 

d) “Wastewater” shall mean Industrial waste, sewage or other waste including that which may be 

combined with any water, ground water, surface water or storm water, whether treated or untreated. 

e) “Oil extraction activities” shall mean all geologic or geophysical activities related to the 

exploration for or extraction of oil, including, but not limited, to, core and rotary drilling and 

hydraulic fracturing. 
 

f) “Oil waste” shall mean: 1) any liquid or solid waste or its constituents that is generated as a result 

of oil extraction activities, which may consist of water, brine, chemicals, naturally occurring 

radioactive materials, heavy metals, or other contaminants; 2) leachate from solid wastes associated 

with oil extraction activities; and 3) any products or byproducts resulting from the treatment, 

processing, or modification of any of the above wastes. 
 

Sec. 3. Prohibitions. 
 

1. The processing, storage, application and treatment of municipal solid waste and wastewater, 

whether or not such waste has received approval for use by TCEQ (Texas Commission on 

Environmental Quality) or any other regulatory body, on any road or real property located 

within the City for any purpose is prohibited, unless operation is carried out by the City. 

 

2. The introduction of municipal solid waste by product from the processing, storage and treatment 

of municipal solid waste or wastewater, including wastewater (treated or untreated), into any 

wastewater collection system and wastewater treatment facility within or operated by the City is 

9



2  

prohibited. 

 

3. The introduction of municipal solid waste by product from the processing, storage and 

treatment of municipal solid waste or wastewater, including wastewater (treated or untreated), 

into any solid waste management facility within or operated by the City is prohibited. 

 

4. The storage, disposal, application, sale, acquisition, handling, transfer, treatment and/or processing 

of municipal solid waste and wastewater from domestic septic tanks, portable toilets, d o m e s t i c  

a n d  c o m m e r c i a l  g r e a s e  t r a p s ,  a n d  wastewater sludges activities is prohibited within the 

City, unless operation is carried out by the City. 

 

Sec. 4. Bid specifications of the City related to the construction, repair or 

maintenance of Town owned and/or maintained roads or real property within the Town. 

 

All bid specifications of the City related to either (a) the purchase or acquisition of materials by the 

Town to be used to construct, repair or maintain any City owned and/or maintained road or real 

property within the City or (b) the performance of services for the City to construct, repair or 

maintain any City owned and/or maintained road or real property within the City, shall include a 

requirement that each bidder shall provide a certification to the City in its bid response that, in 

connection with the bid and if it is awarded the purchase order or contract by the City, in 

connection with any purchase order or contract, it shall not be in violation of any provision of 

Section 13-52 of this Ordinance. 

 

Sec. 5. Fines and Penalties. 

 

In response to a violation of any provision of Section 13-52 of this Ordinance, the City may impose 

the following fines and penalties: 

 

A. A fine of two thousand dollars ($2,000) for each separate offense or violation.   

 

B. The City is also authorized to take any other action, or exercise any other remedy or assess 

any other fines or penalties as may be allowed or permitted at law or in equity. 

 
C. A ny and all remedies shall be cumulative and two or more remedies may be exercised at the 

same time. 

Sec. 6.     Severability. 

 

The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be severable. If any clause, sentence, 

paragraph, subdivision, section or part of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person, 

individual, corporation, firm, partnership, entity or circumstance shall be adjudged by any court of 

competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unconstitutional, such order or judgment shall not affect, 

impair, effect or invalidate the remainder of this Ordinance, but shall be confined in its operation to 

the clause, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, section or part of this Ordinance or in its application to 

the person, individual, corporation, firm, partnership, entity or circumstance directly involved in the 

controversy in which such order or judgment shall be rendered. 

 

Sec. 7. Effective Date. 

 

This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days after publication in a newspaper having 

10



3  

substantial, continuous circulation within the City. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED ON FIRST READINGTHIS THE 16TH DAY OF AUGUST, 2022. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED ON SECOND READING THIS THE 6TH DAY OF 

SEPTEMBER, 2022.  

 

 

 

       ___________________________________ 

       Oscar D. Montoya Sr., Mayor 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED: 

 

 

__________________________________  ____________________________________ 

Joselynn Castillo, City Secretary   Martie Garcia-Vela, City Attorney

11



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-18 

 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CITY OF MERCEDES SUBDIVISION 
ORDINANCE TO ENFORCE SUBDIVISION PLATS AND RULES IN THE CITY’S 
EXTRATERITORIAL JURISDICTION; PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION; 
PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY NOT TO EXCEED $2,000 PER VIOLATION 
THEREOF; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, AND ORDAINING OTHER 
PROVISIONS RELATED TO THE SUBJECT MATTER THEREOF. 

WHEREAS,  Section 212 of  the Texas Local Government  Code authorizes the City of Mercedes 

to adopt rules governing plats and subdivisions of land within the City's jurisdiction, including the City’s 

Extraterritorial Jurisdiction, to promote the health, safety, morals or general welfare of the City and the 

safe, orderly, and healthful development of the municipality; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to this authorization, the City of Mercedes has adopted the Subdivision 

Ordinance to accomplish these purposes and to therefore serve the public; and 

WHEREAS, The City Commission of the City of Mercedes desires to make amendments and 

to simplify the Subdivision Ordinance to continue accomplishing these purposes and so better serve 

the public; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF 

COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF MERCEDES, TEXAS, THAT: 

Section 1. The Subdivision Ordinance and the Standard Design Manual shall apply and be enforced in the 

Extraterritorial Jurisdiction of the City of Mercedes where applicable. 

Section 2. Street Standard in City Limit and Extraterritorial Jurisdiction 

(a) Streets.

(1) Street layout. Adequate streets shall be provided by the developer and the arrangement, character,

extent, width, grade, and location of each shall conform to the major thoroughfare plan in the

transportation chapter of the current comprehensive plan of the city and shall be considered in relation

to existing and planned streets, to topographical conditions, to public safety and convenience, and in

their appropriate relationship to the proposed uses of land to be served by such streets. Local street

layout shall be devised for the most advantageous current and future development of the entire

neighborhood/area, as determined by the Planning Director. Subdivisions that adjoin state roads must

adhere to TxDOT's Access Management Manual.

(2) Relation to adjoining street system. Where necessary to the neighborhood pattern, existing streets in

adjoining areas shall be continued as much as possible. and shall be at least as wide as such existing

streets and in alignment therewith.

12



(3) Projection of streets. Where adjoining areas are not subdivided, the arrangement of streets in the 

subdivision being considered shall make provisions for the proper projection of these streets into 

unsubdivided areas adjacent to it in the most logical and orderly fashion possible. 

(4) Street jogs. All street jogs shall be approved by the Planning Director and in no case will street jogs 

with centerline offsets of less than 125 feet measured centerline to centerline be allowed. 

(5) Perimeter streets. When a perimeter street of a subdivision is deficient, the developer shall either 

improve the perimeter street or deposit an amount into escrow. 

(6) Street intersections. Street intersections shall be as nearly at right angles as practicable. 

(7) Dead-end streets. Dead-end streets shall be prohibited, except where necessary to provide for future 

extension of streets, in which case they may be designed to extend no longer than 150 feet (per fire 

department requirement Standard 1141 NFPA). 

(8) Cul-de-sacs. Temporary or permanent cul-de-sac streets shall in no case exceed 400 feet in length. 

The cul-de sac bulb shall have a right-of-way of 100 feet in the turnaround and paved not less than 

80 feet in diameter in residential areas, and a right-of-way of 120 feet and a paved turnaround of not 

less than 100 feet in diameter in commercial and industrial areas. The measurement of a cul-de-

sacshall be taken from the centerline of the nearest intersecting street to the center point of the cul-de-

sac turnaround. Subdivisions with more than one cul-de-sac shall have all cul-de-sacs connect with a 

perpendicular street within the subdivision. 

(9) Access points. Any residential subdivision with 30 or more lots must have a minimum of two points 

of access entrances. Where two entrances are required, they shall be placed a distance apart equal to 

not less than one half of the length of the maximum overall diagonal dimension of the lot or area to 

be served, measured in a straight line between accesses. Additional entrances may be required as 

recommended by a traffic impact analysis. Access points for proposed streets must adhere to TxDOT's 

Access Management Manual. 

(10) Local streets. Local streets shall be laid out so as to discourage their use by through traffic. 

Section 3. Fines and Penalties 

In response to a violation of any provision of Section 13-52 of this Ordinance, the City may impose the following 

fines and penalties: 

 

A. A fine of two thousand dollars ($2,000) for each separate offense or violation. 

 

B. The City is also authorized to take any other action, or exercise any other remedy or assess any other 

fines or penalties as may be allowed or permitted at law or in equity. 

 
C. A ny and all remedies shall be cumulative and two or more remedies may be exercised at the 

same time. 

Section 4.     Severability. 

 

The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be severable. If any clause, sentence, paragraph, 

subdivision, section or part of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person, individual, corporation, firm, 

partnership, entity or circumstance shall be adjudged by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or 

13



unconstitutional, such order or judgment shall not affect, impair, effect or invalidate the remainder of this 

Ordinance, but shall be confined in its operation to the clause, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, section or part of 

this Ordinance or in its application to the person, individual, corporation, firm, partnership, entity or circumstance 

directly involved in the controversy in which such order or judgment shall be rendered. 

 

Section 5. Effective Date. 

 

This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days after publication in a newspaper having substantial, 

continuous circulation within the City. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED ON FIRST READINGTHIS THE 17TH DAY OF AUGUST, 2022. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED ON SECOND READING THIS THE 6TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 

2022.  

 

 

 

       ___________________________________ 

       Oscar D. Montoya Sr., Mayor 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED: 

 

 

__________________________________  ____________________________________ 

Joselynn Castillo, City Secretary   Martie Garcia-Vela, City Attorney 

 

 

 

 

 

 

14



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
ON TAX INCREASE 

A tax rate of $0.7750 per $100 valuation has been proposed by the governing body of City of Mercedes. 
PROPOSED TAX RATE $0.7750 per $100
NO-NEW-REVENUE TAX RATE $0.7317 per $100
VOTER-APPROVAL TAX RATE $0.8622 per $100

The no-new-revenue tax rate is the tax rate for the 2022 tax year that will raise the same amount of property 
tax revenue for City of Mercedes from the same properties in both the 2021 tax year and the 2022 tax year.

The voter-approval rate is the highest tax rate that City of Mercedes may adopt without holding an election 
to seek voter approval of the rate.

The proposed tax rate is greater than the no-new-revenue tax rate. This means that City of Mercedes is 
proposing to increase property taxes for the 2022 tax year.

A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE PROPOSED TAX RATE WILL BE HELD ON SEPTEMBER 6, 2022 AT 
6:30 PM AT COMMISSION CHAMBERS OF THE CITY HALL LOCATED AT 400 S. OHIO 
MERCEDES TEXAS 78570.

The proposed tax rate is not greater than the voter-approval tax rate. As a result, City of Mercedes is not 
required to hold an election at which voters may accept or reject the proposed tax rate. However, you may 
express your support for or opposition to the proposed tax rate by contacting the members of the City 
Commission of City of Mercedes at their offices or by attending the public hearing mentioned above.
YOUR TAXES OWED UNDER ANY OF THE RATES MENTIONED ABOVE CAN BE CALCULATED 

AS FOLLOWS:

Property tax amount= (tax rate) x (taxable value of your property)/100 

FOR the proposal: Mayor Oscar D. Montoya Mayor Pro-Tem Joe Martinez 
Comm Place 1-Jacob Howell Comm Place 2-Armando Garcia 
Comm Place 4-Ruben J Saldana 

AGAINST the proposal: N/A 

PRESENT and not voting: N/A 

ABSENT: N/A 

Visit Texas.gov/PropertyTaxes to find a link to your local property tax database on which you can easily 
access information regarding your property taxes, including information about proposed tax rates and 
scheduled public hearings of each entity that taxes your property.

The 86th Texas Legislature modified the manner in which the voter-approval tax rate is calculated to limit 
the rate of growth of property taxes in the state.

The following table compares the taxes imposed on the average residence homestead by City of Mercedes 
last year to the taxes proposed to be imposed on the average residence homestead by City of Mercedes this 
year.

Item 9A

15



2021 2022 Change

Total tax rate (per 
$100 of value) 

$0.7750 $0.7750 increase of $0.0000, or 
0.00% 

Average homestead 
taxable value 

$83,927 $94,934 increase of $11,007, or 
13.11% 

Tax on average 
homestead 

$650.43 $735.74 increase of $85.31, or 
13.12% 

Total tax levy on all 
properties 

$5,282,772 $5,608,949 increase of $326,177, or 
6.17% 

For assistance with tax calculations, please contact the tax assessor for City of Mercedes at 956-318-2157 or 
propertytax@hidalgocountytax.org, or visit www.hidalgocountytax.org for more information.

16



.
Item 9B

17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



Item 9C

76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



AGENDA ITEM NO. ____ 

Consent Agenda 

DATE: September 6, 2022 

FROM: Mary Salinas 

ITEM: Reinstatement of Keep Mercedes Beautiful Committee Members 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

The Keep Mercedes Beautiful Committee is established for the purpose of improving the quality of life in 

Mercedes u being active in recycling efforts and overall cleaning up the City.  

Keep Mercedes Beautiful Committee is composed of 9 members. Currently there is one (1) vacancy and there 

are five (5) members whose term will expire soon. Staff inquired as to their desire to keep serving and all are 

willing to continue serving on the committee.  

Janet Schofield - Term expires September 15, 2022 

Melissa Rincon - Term expires September 15, 2022  

Laura Lopez - Term expires September 15, 2022  

Kathy Cowden - Term expires September 15, 2022  

Jonathan Munoz - Term expires September 15, 2022  

Amenda Martinez - Term expires September 15, 2022 

BOARD REVIEW/CITIZEN FEEDBACK:  Approved 

ALTERNATIVES/OPTIONS:   

FISCAL IMPACT:    

Proposed Expenditure/(Revenue): Account Number(s): 

Finance Review by:   

LEGAL REVIEW:   

ATTACHMENTS: KMB Committee Term expiration list 

Staff Recommendation:  Approve Reappoint the five (5) members whose terms will expire September 

15, 2022. 

9D

84



AGENDA ITEM NO. ____ 

CONSENT ITEM :  

DATE: September 1, 2021 

FROM: Alberto Perez 

ITEM: Bids/Contracts 

Discussion and possible action to approve directing City Manager and Legal 
to contract perform final changes to Televon IT services contract. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

Televon is an IT services company operating within the TIPS (The Interlocal Purchasing System).  Televon 
will be providing the city Level II (Server and Network) IT support on all city servers, UPS and Cloud based 
back up processes.  This is to include updated security patches on the network and recovery processes in 
case of Malware, Ransom ware etc. 

Servers at the PD continue to crash as they did last weekend (August 27 /28) due to the hard being outdated 
and components failing causing the server to crash.   

BOARD REVIEW/CITIZEN FEEDBACK:  N/A 

ALTERNATIVES/OPTIONS:  N/A 

FISCAL IMPACT:   N/A 

LEGAL REVIEW:  Martie Vela 

ATTACHMENTS: N/A 

DRAFT MOTION:  N/A 

10A

85



Page 1 of 9 01198002;1 

 

 

FEE-FOR-SERVICE MASTER AGREEMENT (TIPS) 
 

This Agreement (the “Agreement”) is entered into between Plenteous Consulting, LLC, a Colorado limited liability 
company, d/b/a Televon Consulting Services, (“Televon”) with principal offices at 2093 Philadelphia Pike STE 
8060, Denver, CO 80202 and City of Mercedes Texas (the “Client”) with principal office at 400 S Ohio Ave, 
Mercedes, TX 78570. 

 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. Televon, is a Technology Management and cloud transformation service provider. As such, Televon provide 
professional services in the support of organizations efforts to upgrade, secure and manage their IT 
infrastructure; 

 
B. Client desires to purchase a server enhancement and security solution from Televon on a recurring fee 

bases by utilizing the TIPS awarded contract with Televon pursuant to TIPS contract 200105 Technology 
Solutions Products and Services. 

 
For good and valuable consideration, the Recitals set forth above, which are incorporated into the body of this 
Agreement, and the mutual benefits and obligations of the parties hereto, the parties agree as follows; 

 
I. DEFINITIONS 

Whenever used in this Agreement, the following terminologies shall have the following meanings: 
 Effective Date: The date on which this Agreement has been executed by both parties. 
 Term: Means the Initial Term of this Agreement and all extensions thereof as described in Section VII. 

II. TELEVON SERVICES 

1) Procure, ship, and install new physical servers and associated infrastructure to replace ageing servers on- 
premise (see Exhibit A for details). 

2) Implement new virtual machines on top of new physical servers to replace the existing virtual machines that 
provide applications and functionality to the organization (See Exhibit A for details). 

3) Project manage the migration of existing systems, files and applications to the new servers and virtual 
machines. 

4) Provide Tier 2 and 3 support to Client IT Staff including (see Exhibit B for details). 
5) Implement Backup and Disaster Recovery systems to ensure mission critical applications (see Exhibit C for 

details) are protected in the case the protected on-premise system is damaged or compromised. 
6) Implement an Endpoint Detection and Recovery (EDR) security system on the physical servers and virtual 

machines to provide protection against malicious systems (see Exhibit B for details). 
 

III. CLIENT OBLIGATIONS 

1) Client agrees to provide Televon: 
a) Access to the equipment at all times including VPN remote access, full Administrative remote login 

rights, and physical access at all times to all systems defined in Exhibit A. 
b) An appropriate space for the physical servers to be housed and maintained, where they are physically 

protected from theft and tampering as well as, to the best of the Client’s ability, from accidental damage 
(e.g., drinks getting spilled on them in a breakroom, etc.). 

c) Power supply and network connectivity for the servers to be functional with Client Network. 
d) An IT Manager onsite to provide boots on ground co-management support of the servers. 
e) Maintain insurance sufficient to cover the replacement cost (including labor to implement replacements) 

of the physical hardware described in Exhibit A in the case of physical damage due to client action (e.g., 
spilled drink, dropped equipment, etc.), fire, water damage, and natural disasters (e.g., hurricanes, 
flooding, etc.). 

2) Client will immediately inform Televon of any events, disasters, malware, or other issues that occur which 
may impact this solution, the physical hardware, accessibility to the network or the functionality of the 
servers. 

86



Page 2 of 9 01198002;1 

 

 

IV. PHYSICAL HARDWARE AND DATA OWNERSHIP 

During the initial term of this Agreement, Televon will retain ownership of the physical hardware purchased and 
installed at the Client’s site. At the end of the Initial Term, or earlier as defined in the Termination and Default 
section of this Agreement, hardware ownership will transfer to the Client. 

 
All data and applications that reside on the servers are the property of the Client. In the event, as defined within this 
Agreement, the physical servers are removed from the Client’s premise, Televon will provide the Client with image 
files of the physical servers and virtual machines. These can be used to install the images on new servers by the 
Client at the Client’s expense. 

 
V. FEES, PAYMENTS, & DISCOUNTS 

1) Client agrees to pay Televon based on the fee schedule as defined in Exhibit D of this agreement. 
2) Televon and Client agree to the following payment terms: 

a) Invoices will be sent on the first of each month, covering the services for that month. 
b) Client will have 15 days to pay invoice before the invoice is considered overdue. 
c) Payments not made when due shall accrue interest in accordance with Section 2251.025 of the Texas 

Government Code. 
 

VI. THE TERM OF THIS AGREEMENT 

The Initial Term of this Agreement begins on the Effective Date and continues to September 30, 2024. Upon 
expiration of the Initial Term, and all subsequent terms, the Agreement will renew under the same terms and 
conditions for an additional twelve (12) months. During the initial term, this agreement may only be terminated 
due to Termination rights defined in Section VII or due to Default as defined in Section XV. After the initial term, 
this agreement may be terminated by either party by providing ninety-day (90) written notice to the other party. 

 
VII. TERMINATION 

1) Client may terminate this Agreement, and retain the hardware installed on Client's premises, under the 
following conditions: 
a) If Televon is in Material Default, does not Cure the default after Notice of Default is provided and cure 

period has lapsed, then Client may terminate this Agreement as defined in Section XVI below, or; 
b) Client provides ninety (90) days written notice of termination, pays all open invoices in full, AND pays 

an Early Termination Fee that is equal to fifty (50%) percent of the then remaining monthly fees due 
under the Initial Term of this Agreement (e.g., if Client terminates the agreement on September 30, 
2023 then client will be responsible for paying a single fee equal to 6 months of the monthly fees). 

2) On or after September 30, 2023, Client may terminate this Agreement, but RETURN all hardware installed 
on Client's premises, by paying all open invoices in full, and providing ninety (90) day written notice of 
termination. 

3) After the Initial Term of this Agreement, both parties may terminate the Agreement by providing the other 
party with ninety (90) day written notice. 

 
At time of termination all security monitoring, cloud and off-site backups, and disaster recovery systems will 
cease to be available to Client. 

 
VIII. SURVIVAL 

The Client’s obligation to pay any other amount to Televon due and owing under this Agreement at the time of 
termination, including fees which have been billed but not paid, and recovery mitigation fees that are triggered 
when this Agreement is terminated, shall survive termination. 

 
IX. INDEMNIFICATION 

TELEVON HEREBY AGREES TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD THE CLIENT AND ITS 
EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, OFFICERS AND MEMBERS OF ITS GOVERNING BODY HARMLESS 
FROM CLAIMS, DEMANDS, COSTS, DAMAGES AND CAUSES OF ACTION ARISING 
DIRECTLY FROM THE NEGLIGENCE OF TELEVON OR ITS EMPLOYEES IN FURNISHING 
SERVICES UNDER THIS AGREEMENT. 

87



Page 3 of 9 01198002;1 

 

 

CLIENT RECOGNIZES TELEVON COMANAGED SERVICE PROVIDER, AND THEREFORE CLIENT 
ASSUMES ALL RISK, LIABILTY, OBLIGATION AND LOSSES IN CONNECTION WITH, AND SHALL 
DEFEND, INDEMNIFY, AND SAVE AND HOLD HARMLESS TELEVON, ITS MEMBERS, OFFICERS, 
DIRECTORS, EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS, FROM AND AGAINST ALL LOSSES WHICH ARISE 
FROM OR IN CONNECTIN WITH (i) THE ASSUMED LIABILITY, (ii) PRODUCT DEFECTS, 
MALFUNCTIONS, AND MANUFACTURER ERRORS ASSOCIATED WITH LICENSES PURCHASED, 
AND (iii) ANY BREACH BY CLIENT OF ITS REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES OR COVENANTS 
UNDER THIS AGREEMENT. 

 
X. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 
1) No Consequential or Indirect Damages. In no event shall Either Party, or their employees, agents, officers, and 

members of governing bodies be liable under this Agreement to the other party, or any third party, for 
consequential, indirect, incidental, special, exemplary, punitive or enhanced damages, or lost profits or revenues 
arising out of, relating to, or in connection with any breach of this Agreement, regardless of (A) whether such 
damages were foreseeable, (B) whether or not it was advised of the possibility of such damages and (C) the legal 
or equitable theory (contract, tort, or otherwise) upon which the claim is based. 

2) Maximum Liability. In no event shall either party’s aggregate liability arising out of or related to this Agreement, 
whether arising out of or related to breach of contract, tort (including negligence) or otherwise, exceed the total 
amount paid to Televon pursuant to this Agreement in the twelve (12) months preceding the event giving rise to 
the claim. 

3) If Remedies Fail of Essential Purpose. The limitation of liability provisions set forth in this section X shall apply 
even if the non-breaching party’s remedies under this Agreement fail of their essential purpose. Each party 
acknowledges and agrees that the parties entered into the Agreement in reliance upon limitations of liability set 
forth in this Section X, that the same reflect an allocation of risk between the parties (including risk that a contract 
remedy may fail of its essential purpose and cause consequential loss), and that the same for an essential basis 
of the bargain between the parties. 

 
XI. FORCE MAJEURE 
If either party shall be wholly or partially prevented from the performance of any contractual obligation or duty by 
reason of or through strikes, stoppage of labor, riot, fire, flood, acts of war, insurrection, accident., order of any court, 
act of God, or specific cause reasonably beyond the party's control and not attributable to its neglect or nonfeasance, 
in such event, the time for the performance of such obligation or duty shall be suspended until such disability to 
perform is removed. 

 
XII. NO BOYCOTT 
Televon does not boycott Israel and will not do so during the Term of this Agreement. 

 
XIII. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. 

It is expressly understood and agreed by both parties hereto that the Client is contracting with Televon as an 
independent contractor. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to create an employer/employee relationship, or a 
partnership, joint venture or joint enterprise between the parties. 

 
XIV. NOTICE 

1) All notices given in connection with this Agreement must be in writing. 
2) Except as expressly provided in Section XVI with regard to notice of default, notice may be sent by any 

commercially reasonable method, including by email, hand delivery, facsimile, and U.S. mail. Notices sent by 
hand delivery through a national courier service will be deemed delivered when delivery has been signed for as 
evidenced by the courier’s records. Notices sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, will be deemed 
delivered, whether or not actually received, when deposited in the U.S. mail, if properly addressed to the 
receiving party, with copy of the notice sent concurrently by email. Notice given in any other manner will be 
deemed delivered when and if actually received. 

3) Either party may change its address for notice by giving the other party notice of the change in the manner 
provided for notice in this Section. The requirement for the use of the new address will go into effect 14 days 
after the notice is delivered or deemed delivered. 

88



Page 4 of 9 01198002;1 

 

 

 
Address for Notice: 

 

Section Client Information  Televon Information 
Address 1 400 S Ohio Ave  2093 Philadelphia Pike 

Address 2   STE 8060 

City, State & Zip Mercedes, TX 78570  Claymont, DE 19703 

Name & Title Alberto Perez, City Manager  Michael Breier, President & CEO 

Email aperez@cityofmercedes.com  mbreier@televon.com 

Phone (956) 565-3114  970-672-4487 

 
XV. DEFAULT 

1) The occurrence of any of the following events shall constitute a Default by Televon of the terms of this 
Agreement: 

a) Televon does not meet is defined obligations set forth in Exhibits A, B or C; 
b) Client’s servers are infected with Ransomware AND Televon cannot recover those servers within five 

(5) business days AND Client is required to pay the ransom to recover those servers. 
 

2) The occurrence of any of the following events shall constitute a Default by the Client of the terms of this 
Agreement: 

a) Any payment due from Client is not received within thirty (30) days of the invoice date; 
b) Client becomes insolvent, a Receiver is appointed for the Client, or a voluntary or involuntary petition 

in bankruptcy is filed by or against the Client; or 
c) Client does not meet its obligations as defined in Section III of this Agreement. 

 
XVI. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS REGARDING DEFAULT 
1) Notice of Default. Written notice of Default shall be provided via U.S. Postal Service Certified Mail, Return 

Receipt Requested, to the address for notice described above. Notice of default shall be deemed delivered 
three (3) days after deposit in the U.S. mail, whether or not actually received. 

2) Cure of Default. The notified party shall have fifteen (15) days after delivery or deemed delivery of written 
notice of Default to cure said default. 

3) Remedies for Default. 
a) In the event that a notified party does not Cure a Default, then; 

(i) Televon Default. If Televon is in material default under this Agreement, and does not cure the 
default within the cure period, Client will have the right to early terminate this Agreement as its 
sole and exclusive remedy. This termination will NOT incur early termination fees as defined in 
section VII.1. 

(ii) Client Default. If Client is in default under this Agreement and does not cure the default within 
the cure period, then Televon will consider this the same as a Termination notice as defined in 
Section VII above. All associated fees including then open invoices, fees associated with the 
ninety (90) days post notice, and any early termination fees as defined will be immediately due. 

 
4. Mediation. The parties agree to mediate any dispute arising in connection with this Agreement in good faith, 
prior to filing suit. 

 
5. Attorney’s Fees. If suit is filed to enforce rights under this Agreement, the party prevailing in the litigation will 
be entitled to its reasonable attorney’s fees and court costs. 

 
XVII. JURISDICTION 

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of Texas. 
 

XVIII. VENUE 

The parties agree that venue for any dispute arising under this Agreement shall be in courts of competent 
jurisdiction in Hidalgo County, Texas. 

89



Page 5 of 9 01198002;1 

 

 

XIX. CONFIDENTIALITY OF INFORMATION AND SECURITY 

a. Client will notify Televon of any information that Client considers confidential. Televon shall keep 
such information confidential to the extent required by law and will comply fully with the laws and 
regulations of the State of Texas, or any applicable federal law. 

b. Televon will notify Client of any information that Televon deems confidential or proprietary, and 
Client will keep such information confidential and will not provide the information to others 
without Televon’s written consent, unless Client is required to disclose such information by court 
order or by a decision by the Texas Attorney General after request for a decision is made by the 
Client. 

 
XX. INTEGRATION, MODIFICATIONS, AND AMENDMENTS 

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties concerning the subject matter hereof and 
supersedes all prior or contemporaneous oral or written agreements between the parties concerning the subject 
matter. This Agreement may not be amended, nor shall any waiver, modification, consent or discharge be 
effective, except by a written instrument executed by the parties hereto. 

 
XXI. SEVERABILITY 

In the event any provision of this Agreement is deemed to be void, invalid, or unenforceable, then to the extent that 
doing so does not negate the benefit of the bargain between the parties, that provision shall be severed from the 
remainder of this Agreement so as not to cause the invalidity or unenforceability of the remainder of this Agreement, 
and the Agreement shall be interpreted or reformed to accomplish as closely as possible the original intent of the 
parties, but in a manner that is not void, invalid or unenforceable. If any provision shall be deemed invalid due to its 
scope or breadth, such provision shall be deemed valid to the extent of the scope and breadth permitted by law. 

 
XXII. AUTHORITY 

 
Each person signing below on behalf of a party to this Agreement represents that the Agreement has been duly 
authorized by that party, and the signatory is duly authorized to sign this Agreement on behalf of that party. 

 
Client: Televon: 

 
By  By 

 Alberto Perez 
 

 Michael Breier 
Name  Name 

 City Manager   President & CEO 
Title  Title 

Date  Date 

90



Page 6 of 9 01198002;1 

 

 

Schedule A: Procured Items 
Televon will purchase, install, and configure the following on behalf of the Client: 

 
Physical Servers 
2 Physical Servers with following minimum specs 

 Intel® Xeon® Silver 4314 2.4G, 16C/32T 
 32 GB RAM 
 3.5" Chassis with up to 4 Hard Drives 
 2TB of on-board HDD 
 Windows 2019 or 2022 16 Core Standard Server License 

 
1 Network Attached Storage (NAS) with the following minimum specs 

 Dual-socket, 2U rack mount NAS server 
 Intel® Xeon® Bronze 3204, Silver 4208 or Silver 4214 processors 
 Up to 64GB* memory 
 SATA, NL-SAS or SAS drive options 
 Up to 16 hot-swap 3.5” drives for data; two 2.5” drives for OS 
 At least 40TB of on board HDD (Up to 192TB raw capacity) setup in a RAID 5 configuration 
 Windows Storage Server 2016 

 
Other Hardware 

 1 Uninterruptible Power Supply (UPS) with the following minim specs (assumes PD UPS is currently 
sufficient to support disaster needs) 

o Rack mountable 
o 2200 Wat 9 Ah 
o AC 100/110/120/125 V 
o Output 4+ connectors 
o Runtime for server configuration of 6+ minutes 

 Cables required to connect servers and UPS 
 2 separate rack mounts for housing and protecting the servers and UPS 

 
Virtual Severs 

 A virtualization system to enable the deployment of virtual machines on each of the Physical Servers 
 

Licensing 
 Operating Systems: Up to 14 additional Windows 2019 or 2022 Standard Server 2 core for Virtual Machine 

OS 
 Client Access Licenses (CAL’s): Up to 160 User CAL’s to provide users the legal right to access any and 

all data and applications on the Servers. 
 

Not Included 
 Networking hardware including Switches, Internet Access Points, Firewalls or VPN access either the 

hardware, configuration or Tier 1, 2 or 3 support for these 
 Desktop and Workstations either the hardware, configuration or Tier 1, 2 or 3 support for these 
 Phone system including hardware, configuration and interconnected services 

91



Page 7 of 9 01198002;1 

 

 

Schedule B: Security and Disaster Recovery 
Included in Televon’s Co-Managed Solution monthly pricing are two Cloud Based systems that are Best In Class at 
protecting your server systems from Malicious actions. They also function as gateways to enable Televon to provide 
the needed support, maintenance and Co-Managed service that is core to this offering. 

 
Server Security 
Televon will implement on all physical servers and virtual machines under management the Sentinel One Complete 
service. This is the Industry Leading security solution that protects you from not only known threats, but also protects 
you from threats that just emerging and are not yet know to the malware threat industry. 

 
It delivers multi-layered AI-powered endpoint protection, with Static AI pre-execution protection for known and 
unknown file-based malware, and Behavioral AI agent-side behavioral monitoring that covers any attack vector, 
including unknown exploits and bypass attempts of traditional anti-virus. 

 
With active attack remediation, cleaning all artifacts of a malicious attempt, including registry, scheduled tasks and 
more, while Rollback Revert returns an endpoint its pre-infected state. Upon detection, SentinelOne can immediately 
stop lateral threat spread cold by disconnecting the infected endpoint from the network while still maintaining the 
agent’s connection to the management console. 

 
Disaster Recovery 
Sentinel One is the best solution to keep malicious actors and malware off of your servers, but even the best system 
can be undermined by accidental clicks by employees, network configuration issues or highly funded state actors 
like China and Russia. Because of this, Televon will implement the Acronis Backup and Disaster Recovery systems 
on the Client’s critical to function systems. 

 
The Acronis DR system is cloud based and includes an advanced malware screening system that constantly monitors 
both new backup files as well as your existing backup images. In addition, the DR system can be integrated into your 
current network so that Cloud based Virtual Servers can be spun up from the DR backup within minutes of a DR 
protected server failure. This enables you to maintain core business function while with a cloud server while we 
work to recover your on-prem server. 

 
Most importantly, by storing your backups and DR service in the cloud, any ransomware attack on your on-prem 
servers can be circumnavigated by implementing new cloud based VMs within a few minutes. 

92



Page 8 of 9 01198002;1 

 

 

Schedule C: Co-Management Support 
Televon offers the following co-management services to the Client. 

 
Ongoing Server Infrastructure Support and Services: 

• System Asset catalog and tracking including server products, designed utilization, build versions and 
connectivity and integration strategies; 

• Eyes on Glass server monitoring including patch tracking, implementation and backend support and 
management; 

• Setup of new Virtual Machine environments. Not this does not include the implementation of a new service 
or application on the new Virtual Machine (this would be an add-on included at an hourly rate); 

• Tier 2 and 3 help desk on-call support for Client Information Technology Administration team: 
• Tier 1 (Client responsibility) includes adding and deleting users, configuring applications as 

designed by the OEM and provider, and basic troubleshooting of the server environment. 
• Tier 2 (Televon) support includes configuration issues of the OS, users’ access, and advanced 

administration issues. 
• Tier 3 (Televon) support includes recovery of failed machines, implementation of Disaster Recovery 

protocols, and working with OEMs on system bugs and issues. 
• Not included in this service is: 

• Implementation of new application post initial implementation migration (other than assisting with 
the Microsoft OS integration) 

• Migrating an existing service (Active Directory, Exchange, On-Prem 3rd Party Application) to a new 
environment post initial implementation (e.g., Project Managing the migration of an application to 
the Cloud). 

• Troubleshooting network access issues for servers or applications (e.g., port access issues, firewalls, 
user VPN access, etc.). 

 
In support of the above services, Televon agrees to provide the following: 

1) Televon’s available business hours will be: 
a) Monday Through Friday 8:00am-5:00pm in the Central Time zone 
b) Observed Holidays will follow the Federally Observed holidays as listed on the US Office of Personnel 

Management’s (https://www.opm.gov/policy-data-oversight/pay-leave/federal-holidays) plus; 
i) The Friday immediately following Thanksgiving 
ii) Christmas Eve (or the next closest business day) 

2) Support & service request channels 
a) Online ticket submission and management (preferred) at support.televon.com 
b) Email ticket submission at support@televon.com 
c) Call center ticket submission through Televon’s main phone number 724-325-1660 

3) Ticket system uptime will be 99.5% outside of normally scheduled maintenance windows 
4) Ticket response times (answering ticket and initiating support and service) during normal business hours: 

a) Standard tickets, defined as system issues that are not of a critical security nature, will have 4 hours or 
less response time. Televon will attempt, with its best effort, to respond to tickets submitted after 1:00pm 
on a business day within that same business day. 

b) Emergency tickets, defined as system issues that are of a critical security nature, will have a 1 hour or 
less response time. Televon will attempt, with its best effort, to respond to tickets submitted after 4:00pm 
on a business day within that same business day. 

93



Page 9 of 9 01198002;1 

 

 

 

Schedule D: Fee Schedule 

The fees for Televon Services will be implemented in phases. The dates for these fees are fixed and not contingent on the 
implementation of specific project milestones. 

 
Phase Start Date Monthly Fee Notes 
Phase 1: Procurement Contract 

Effective 
Date 

$0 Televon will work with city Clientto finalize the 
specs of the hardware required for Phase 1 and 
procure the hardware and license 

Phase 2: Physical Server #1 + up to 8 
Virtual Servers + NAS 

October 1, 
2022 

$5,000 Televon will work with the Client staff to 
schedule implementation of the fist Physical 
Server, the NAS, UPS, and required Virtual 
Machines. 

Phase 3: Physical Server #2 + Up to 6 
Virtual Servers + ongoing Co- 
Management 

January 1, 
2023 

$7,500 Televon will work with the Client staff to 
schedule implementation of the second Physical 
Server and required Virtual Machines. 

Phase 4: Renewal October 1, 
2024 

$5,000 Televon will transfer ownership of the hardware 
to Client, but will maintain Co-management 
support as well continue to provide Disaster 
Recovery and Security services 

 
Add-ons and Upgrades that will be charged at the first of the next month and continue until either add-on is discontinued or 
the contract is terminated 

Item Fee Notes 
Virtual Machines (14 Included in Base Price) $100 / Month At same current configuration. Includes OS 

license, security license for Sentinel One, and 
Co-Management support 

On-Prem Storage Capacity (Per TB) $40 / Month Assuming added to existing NAS system. If 
additional NAS server is required that will be 
treated like a new Physical Server 

Client Access Licenses (CAL’s) in Groups of 5 $10 / Month These are needed for additional users over the 
160 included in the base proposal 

Disaster Recovery (Per TB) (Rounded up to 
Nearest 1TB) 

$150 / Month Disaster recovery should be constrained to just 
Mission Critical applications and data. 

 
Services required above and beyond what is defined in this agreement and the attached Exhibits will be scoped independently 
and assigned a Statement of Work (SOW). These SOW’s are typically hourly work based which Televon agrees to charge to 
Client at the following rates: 

 Tech Analyst = $100 / hour 
 Project Management = $125 / hour 
 Senior Tech Manager = $150 / hour 

 
Additional Physical Servers and Network Attached Storage (NAS) devices will be assessed on a case by case to meet the then 
specific needs of the Client. 

94



AGENDA ITEM NO. ____ 

Management Items 

DATE: September 6, 2022 

FROM: Javier Ramirez, Assistant City Manager 

ITEM: Discussion and Possible Action to approve a Waterline Access Agreement between North 
Alamo Water Supply Corporation and the City of Mercedes for El Dorado Subdivision 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

City of Mercedes currently has an interlocal cooperation agreement to provide emergency services in the 
rural response district with Hidalgo County. El Dorado Estates is located within the rural response district. 
The water distribution system belongs to North Alamo Water Supply Corporation. In order to provide 
firefighting services in the El Dorado Estates Subdivision and use NAWSC water distribution system, a 
Waterline Access Agreement must be executed between NAWSC and the City of Mercedes.   

. 

BOARD REVIEW/CITIZEN FEEDBACK:  N/A 

ALTERNATIVES/OPTIONS:  N/A 

FISCAL IMPACT:   N/A 

LEGAL REVIEW:  Martie Vela-Garcia 

ATTACHMENTS: N/A 

DRAFT MOTION:  Approve the waterline access agreement. 

10B

95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111


	9-6-22 Agenda Notice
	Item 7A1 - August 16, 2022
	Item 7A2 - August 17, 2022 Special Meeting
	Item 7A3 - August 18, 2022 Workshop
	Item 7B - Ordinance 2022-16 to REZONE-MOT lOT 24 bLK 69
	Item 7C MSW Ordinance 2022-17
	Item 7D 2022-18 Mercedes Subdivision and Street Rules in ETJ Ordinance
	Item 9A - CMC Notice of Tax Increase 08-19
	Item 9B - FY 2022-2023 Proposed Budget cc
	Item 9C DCM Budget
	Item 9D KMB Members
	Item 10A1 IT Contract Televon 9-1-22
	Item 10A2 IT Contract Mercedes (TIPS) Managed Services AgreementV2
	Item 10B1  Waterline Access Agreement El Dorado
	Item 10B2 Wateline Access Agreement



